
Date Published:10 July 2020     

Environment Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 15 July 2020 at 10.00 am

Please note that this meeting will be held remotely and can be
viewed on the County Council website at
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Chair

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 34)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 4 March 2020.

Chair

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Chair

4  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT: ECONOMY, ENVIRONMENT 
AND INFRASTRUCTURE (Pages 35 - 48)

Colin Chick, Executive Director of Economy, Environment & Infrastructure 
to update the Committee on current issues.

Quarter 4 performance data is included at the end of this report.

Appendix 1 to this report is a brief update on the Definitive Map 
Modification Order outreach post.

Colin Chick

5  WORK PLAN (Pages 49 - 50)

To review the committee work plan and suggest items for consideration at 

Chair

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


    

future meetings. (Work plan attached).

6  FUTURE MEETINGS 

23 September 2020 (Joint meeting with Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee)
24 November 2020

Chair

Membership –  Cllr Phil Awford, Cllr Robert Bird (Chair), Cllr Dr John Cordwell (Vice-Chair), 
Cllr Kevin Cromwell, Cllr Stephen Hirst, Cllr Sajid Patel, Cllr Eva Ward, Cllr Suzanne Williams and 
Cllr Keith Rippington 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Acting Monitoring 
Officer, (Rob Ayliffe Tel:01452 328506/ e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior 
to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Environment Scrutiny Committee held on Wednesday 4 
March 2020 at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
Cllr Robert Bird
Cllr Dr John Cordwell
Cllr Kevin Cromwell
Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Sajid Patel

Cllr Suzanne Williams
Cllr Keith Rippington
Cllr Rachel Smith
Cllr Will Windsor-Clive

Officers in attendance: Kathryn Haworth, Simon Excell, Philip Williams and James 
Blockley

1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Phil Awford and Eva Ward.

Cllrs Will Windsor-Clive and Rachel Smith were present as substitutes.

Cllr Nigel Moor, Cabinet Member for Environment and Planning and Colin Chick, 
Director for Economy, Environment and Infrastructure sent apologies due to 
needing to attend the Western Gateway Board meeting.

2. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 15 January 2020 were approved and signed by 
the Chair.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

4. DRAFT ELECTRIC VEHICLE INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY 

4.1 Philip Williams, Lead Commissioner Community Infrastructure, opened the 
item thanking the Committee for their useful feedback and steer on the draft 
proposals at the January 2020 Committee meeting.

4.2 The Committee were informed that the Council had since commissioned 
Atkins to produce an overarching strategy which would help join up the 
threads and deliver the most appropriate Ultra Low Emission Vehicle (ULEV) 
infrastructure for the County. It was emphasised that the report and 
presentation here represented a first draft and officers welcomed further 
feedback to help shape a final strategy. Kevin Mather and Jodie Savickas 
from Atkins were then introduced to present the draft strategy (presentation 
attached at Annex 1).

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

4.3 Members were advised that Atkins had set a policy position using the 
feedback from the previous Committee meeting and by undertaking 
nationwide research on other strategy examples. The expectation was, 
following the approval and adoption of the strategy by GCC, investment in 
the strategy would then be prioritised to seek appropriate procurement 
approaches.

4.4 The Committee noted that even though this was a new policy area, it had 
evolved fast and there were already a range of national, regional and local 
policies in place that covered the enablement of rolling out the new 
technology. This also was not something that only affected the transport 
sector (slide 3). 

4.5 Slides 5 – 11 gave an overview of the existing situation in the County as a 
whole and then divided between districts. The map on the right showed 
approximate locations of existing ULEV charging points and the map on the 
left reflected commuter patterns taken from the ‘Travel to Work’ Census 
data.

4.6 It was highlighted that there are currently 136 chargers across the county for 
5,200 registered ULEVs. This represented a 1.2% average in 
Gloucestershire for ULEV ownership which was slightly lower than the 
national average.

4.7 The commuting patterns allowed Atkins to understand whether the current 
distance range for ULEVs would be an inhibiter to resident’s commutes. The 
maps showed that a majority of the county’s residents only travel within the 
county for their work and therefore would not be constrained by range 
limitations.

4.8 Where the maps divide into districts, hot spot analysis and parking 
restrictions data had been overlaid to allow Atkins to understand where there 
were off-street parking restrictions coupled with a high concentration of 
terraced housing. Where these criterion overlapped, this highlighted the best 
opportunities for GCC to be providing the ULEV infrastructure.

4.9 Atkins also reviewed the Acorn Market Segmentation Data and slide 12 
showed a snapshot example of this. They had data for the whole county and 
it allowed a further level of prioritisation analysis focused on behaviours.

4.10 On slides 13 – 15 the Committee noted proposals for the ULEV network in 
terms of where chargers would need to be available, the type of charger that 
would be most appropriate and the average journey times to key services. 
This analysis helped Atkins to understand which type of charger would need 
to be available and in which locations to allow residents to charge sufficiently 
to undertake their daily travels. 

4.11 Slides 16 and 17 outlined the criteria for selecting charging sites and the 
potential funding sources. It was highlighted that there are a number of 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

national funding options available, but many of these did require local match 
funding. However, it was also stressed that this was a cross sector policy 
and therefore it did not fall solely on the transport sector to fund locally, it fell 
within many other policy areas as well.

4.12 Finally, the Committee were informed of the proposed actions for the 
Council’s strategy. These were split between where GCC can; ‘Lead’ – have 
complete control over the action; ‘Enable’ – lead or enable others to act; 
‘Explore’ – look at new initiatives; and ‘Partner’ – the need for third party 
action (slides 18 and 19). Members noted the implementation plan and 
monitoring suggestion (slides 20 and 21).

4.13 Members were advised that due to the finances that would eventually be 
involved with the strategy, once a final draft version had been agreed, it 
would need to be presented to Cabinet for authority to proceed.

Questions

4.14 It was questioned whether hydrogen technology was being explored. The 
member stressed that there was still a carbon footprint involved in producing 
electric vehicles. It was advised that the Council is aware that electric 
vehicles were not the answer to everything, there was still a carbon footprint 
involved and there would still be congestion on the roads, but they do form 
part of the action. 

4.15 In terms of hydrogen, the draft UVEL strategy was not restricted to electric 
vehicles and therefore would not exclude other ultra low emission vehicles.

4.16 It was noted however that hydrogen vehicles have had particularly bad sales 
figures whereas the quality and availability of battery electric vehicles had 
‘mushroomed’. It was accepted that even though the pace of change was 
huge in this area, GCC needed to take action now and would have to adapt 
to newer technologies as and when. 

4.17 It was noted that this strategy would not rely solely on public funding and it 
would require buy-in from the private sector also. The GFirst LEP was 
currently funding a business travel engagement group in Gloucestershire 
which involved employers in discussions on ULEV infrastructure.

4.18 A member suggested the use of car share clubs as a way of sharing the 
carbon produced from producing and using a car, as well as parking spaces 
in the county. It was advised that there were examples of very successful car 
clubs in Bristol for example. Such arrangements encourage people to think 
more about their journey, and whether they really need a car to do it. This 
would come within the ‘explore’ section of the strategy.

4.19 It was questioned how the electricity grid in the UK would cope with such an 
increase on its demand. An example was given that in many rural areas, 
residents often use generators to provide additional electricity capacity and it 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

would defeat the object if people were using diesel generators to charge their 
electric vehicles.

4.20 In response, the Committee heard that the issue of grid capacity was an area 
of evolving research and it might be in the future that advances such as grid 
balancing technology become available, but for now it was a question many 
around the world faced.

4.21 Several members noted during discussions the recent news of new ‘eco-
friendly’ petrol that was due to be rolled out in the UK from next year. It was 
a worry that advances like this would discourage residents from moving to 
ULEV’s altogether.

4.22 Concern was expressed on how the Council knew leading with the roll out of 
charging points was the right technology to use, could the technology evolve 
in the next five years and leave the county out of sync. It was advised that 
the Council have been using chargers for a while now; some were five years 
old and were no longer compatible with the range of modern electric 
vehicles. This was just the nature of technology, and these chargers would 
become obsolete due to age regardless of advances.

4.23 This was exactly why the ULEV strategy needed to be flexible, this was an 
area that would need to be monitored and manged as the strategy evolved. 
An example of an evolving technology was using wireless charging pads 
which were built into the highway. These however would come with 
significant costs for installation but could be useful in areas such as taxi 
ranks and rail station pick ups.

4.24 It was questioned how this strategy addressed the Council’s wider ambition 
of reducing avoidable car journeys overall. It was advised that this strategy 
would work alongside the Local Transport Plan which was currently going 
through an update and would focus on alternative journey types and how to 
make these more accessible. It was accepted that the improvements to 
public transport in the county needed to interlink with the ULEV strategy to 
encourage the wider ambitions.

4.25 When residents are taking longer trips with multiple destinations and with 
large luggage; it becomes less likely they will choose public transport. The 
ULEV strategy therefore allows residents who do own a car, to at least have 
the most eco-friendly option available.

4.26 It was suggested that making sure ULEV vehicles would not get free parking, 
and thus making it slightly less convenient for car owners, will go some way 
to discouraging car use, regardless of vehicle type. 

4.27 Members also noted the work happening around discouraging families from 
using cars for the school run. Campaigns such as ‘Pester Power’ where 
children are encouraging their parents to walk or cycle to school have been 
successful in the county. In addition this year’s budget had allowed for an 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

additional post in the Integrated Transport Unit to work with schools on 
developing an accredited school travel plan.

4.28 There were several questions about how the Council could incentivise 
residents to switch to ULEVs. It was agreed that this would be incredibly 
important to encourage a move away from petrol/diesel vehicles. Even 
though ULEVs were still currently more expensive to buy, the cost per mile 
was dropping very fast, and it was envisaged eventually it would be more 
cost effective to make the switch. In addition the Government continued to 
introduce finance incentives such as the benefit in kind for businesses on 
company cars, which was normally about 20% and would now be 0% from 
1st April 2020 for the following three years.

4.29 It was noted that the Council was currently trialling a lease scheme for staff 
to use e-bikes and ULEVs for their working day. It was currently being 
targeted at social workers who had unavoidable daily journeys to make.

4.30 Following this point, a member questioned how GCC would manage onsite 
charging demand if this were offered to all employees of the Council. It was 
explained that the travel work to data shows that a majority of Council 
employees were travelling from within the county. This means due to the 
short distances, there should not be a need for many employees to charge 
every time they get into work. 

4.31 There was a discussion about Ultra Low Emission Zones (ULEZs) and 
whether they would be introduced in Gloucestershire. It was explained that 
as part of the Government’s clean air strategy, such zones can only be 
declared when an area breaches the EU air quality limit. They are very 
expensive to enforce and can negatively impact on certain groups e.g. taxi 
drivers who are then supported through mitigation funds from central 
Government. 

4.32 It was questioned as to how GCC were engaging with the manufacturers 
who produce the charging points and who therefore had a vested interest in 
their companies being chosen to supply large quantities. It was explained 
that such engagement would not come until the ‘explore and partner with 
other organisations’ section of the strategy, it would allow the Council to 
explore innovative ways to encourage ULEV uptake, which of course could 
include agreements with manufacturers.

4.33 In the short term, the strategy focused its time and finance on what the 
council had direct control over, although it was accepted manufacturers 
should be doing more to support this roll out nationwide. Officers agreed to 
take away the point and give it further thought.

5. BIODIVERSITY DRAFT INFORMATION SHEET 

5.1 Kathryn Haworth, Highways Lead Commissioner, reminded Members that 
the attached paper contained a draft information leaflet and a covering report 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

which was requested by the Committee in November 2018. These were 
taken as read and the discussion was opened up for feedback.

5.2 There was a query as to whether there was any specific advice for parish 
councils on the ash dieback tree disease. In response, it was advised that 
the recently approved GCC budget for 2020/21 allocated £0.5 million to 
begin preparing a strategy for tackling this issue. There was ongoing 
consultation and discussion with the ecology unit and partners such as the 
Forestry Commission that have an in-depth knowledge of the disease. Whilst 
further information was being gathered, it was agreed to reference some 
information sources GCC were aware of already.

5.3 A member noted that one of the Biodiversity task group recommendations 
was to develop a business case on collecting cuttings after the verge had 
been cut. It was questioned whether there was any advice about addressing 
this within parish maintained verges. The Committee were reminded that the 
business case was produced and it had unfortunately identified that it would 
be too costly to move to a ‘cut and collect’ option at this time due to the lack 
of available technology. Parish councils were encouraged to discuss any 
initiatives for collecting cuttings, on a smaller scale, with their local highways 
manager.

5.4 There was a discussion about the importance of communication from GCC 
to other councils and to residents on conservation verges and a move to 
reduce cutting in order to allow biodiversity time to flourish. It was agreed 
that rather than including this in the information sheet, it would be a long-
term action for officers to take away. The highways team would be seeking 
to develop a mapping solution that would work countywide for a range of 
vegetation management issues such as this.

5.5 It was explained on questioning that any other council undertaking grass 
cutting on behalf of GCC did so in line with GCC guidance and procedures 
and would be paid for the same level of service. Sometimes local councils 
would choose to additionally supplement this work and would also involve 
volunteers. It was agreed that discussions in relation to this service should 
be kept between the relevant council and their local GCC highways 
manager. The information in the proposed leaflet should remain focused on 
biodiversity and how to protect.

5.6 Finally, a member raised the issue of utility companies carrying out essential 
works but ended up causing damage to the verge in the process. It is 
understood that there was a requirement for companies to restore any verge 
damage but it was questioned how far GCC would enforce guidance such as 
this. It was asked to take away this query and discuss with the street works 
team who liaise with utility companies.

ACTION: KATHRYN HAWORTH

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

6. LOCAL FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY ANNUAL IMPLEMENTATION 
PLAN 2019/20 – 2020/21 

6.1 James Blockley, Principal Flood Risk Management Officer, introduced the 
Annual Progress and Implementation Plan which looked back at the previous 
year and forward to the next year (2019-2021).

6.2 The Committee noted that over the past 13 months, thousands of residents 
in Gloucestershire had been affected in some way by flooding, including the 
most recent incident mainly in Tewkesbury and the Forest of Dean. It was 
also noted that unfortunately, extreme weather events were going to become 
the norm and flooding would no longer occur in isolated incidents. It was 
therefore very important that the team continued to build resilience for the 
county against future events.

6.3 Members heard that the best way to tackle flooding was not just to focus on 
individual capital development schemes, but to also look at ways of 
managing the risk be that through natural or more traditional alleviation 
schemes.

6.4 The team at GCC has had two new members join in the past year and had 
been focusing good effort on maintaining closer relationships with the wider 
level of organisations surrounding flood management, for example, the 
Environment Agency and NFU, as well as, maintaining key roles in the 
Natural Flood Management Forum and the River Severn Corridor project.

6.5 It was concluded that if the Committee were happy with the report, it would 
be published and available online after the meeting.

6.6 A member queried how the new tree planting objectives for the county would 
work alongside the flood risk management objectives, it was highlighted that 
trees may cause a hindrance to water flow in some areas.

6.7 It was advised that working with natural processes was a part of flood 
management and sometimes tree planting would stabilise the land, but it was 
vital that this method was only used in the right place. It was also important 
to work in partnership and share best practice.

6.8 A member questioned why in table 3.1 some parishes showed an increase in 
calculated risk but there was no action to address this. It was requested to 
take discussion about an individual parish offline so more detail could be 
provided. It was reassured that this list was revisited on a regular basis and 
measured against a wide range of metrics.

6.9 The report stated that the Council would allocate at least £2.1 million per 
year for flood prevention; it was questioned how many years previous this 
had happened. It was advised that this went back to 2008 when the Council 
exercised a flood levy through council tax.

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

6.10 A member requested for information to be provided on the financial 
contributions of the district councils and Environment Agency into the 
county’s flood alleviation works since 2008. It was also raised that there was 
a typo on page 5 of the report where planned activities should be for 2020 
not 2019.

ACTION: JAMES BLOCKLEY

6.11 There was a discussion about the prioritisation of alleviation works. Members 
noted that scheme prioritisation does take into account how many times an 
area has flooded and if works had already been carried out. It may be that 
some areas/properties are more likely to continue to flood regardless of 
schemes put in place. If work had already been carried out, this would 
reduce the prioritisation of any future schemes. It was stressed however that 
this did not mean areas were being left behind; the team were working hard 
to identify new methods to help tackle these more difficult areas.

6.12 A member observed during recent floods that there was an issue regarding 
members of the public pumping flood waters into the highways drains. When 
these became full, they were creating their own flooding issues on the roads. 
It was noted that this had always been a problem, there was a need for 
better partnership working and communication during flooding incidents.

6.13 The Committee and Cabinet member paid tribute to the hard work of the 
GCC flood alleviations team since the floods of 2007.

7. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT: ECONOMY, ENVIRONMENT AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE 

7.1 As apologies had been received from Colin Chick, the department’s three 
Lead Commissioners were present at the meeting to cover this item. It was 
agreed that each would take their relevant sections of the report in turn and 
answer questions.

7.2 To begin, Simon Excell, Lead Commissioner for Strategic Infrastructure, 
covered the main points within section 4 of the report. It was advised that 4.1 
and 4.3 were expecting imminent decisions on their funding, potentially by 
this time next week as this was budget day for the Government.

7.3 The West Cheltenham Transport Improvement project hoped to have site 
mobilisation shortly as contractors were currently being appointed and the 
Local Transport Plan Review had received a lot of public and member 
interest during its consultation period. This would be discussed in further 
detail at the Committee’s joint meeting in May 2020.

7.4 It was queried whether officers were concerned that a number of major 
infrastructure schemes would be impacted in the same way as the Heathrow 
runway project. It was advised that confidence still remained on these 
schemes but the team would continue to monitor the national picture and 

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

respond accordingly. In addition, GCC were very keen to work with district 
councils to make sure their local plans had sufficient and robust transport 
evidence within them.

7.5 A member asked if the final version of the GCC officer representations on 
the recent consultation for the Stroud District Local Plan could be shared 
with the Committee.

ACTION: SIMON EXCELL

7.6 Second, Philip Williams, Lead Commissioner for Community Infrastructure, 
covered section 3 of the report. Members were advised that the changes to 
revert Boots corner back would likely take a few months yet. There were a lot 
of temporary safety barriers in place and the pedestrian crossing needed to 
be reinstated properly.

7.7 The Climate Change Strategy was in its first year of the action plan and the 
high level commitments. A temporary project manager started in the team 
last month and Gloucester City Council would be recruiting a countywide 
coordinator post to help align future activities.

7.8 A member raised an ongoing issue with the traffic light management system 
at the far end of Boots corner. It was advised that two junctions on the ring 
road were in the 2020/21 capital works improvement programme.

7.9 It was questioned how carbon emissions and the impact on climate change 
would be communicated through the due regards statement process for 
council policy. It was advised that it would have to be taken offline and 
discussed with the officer leading on the strategy as to how high of a priority 
this particular aspect was during the first year. It was recognised however 
that the impact on climate change should be taken into account across all 
the Council’s works.

ACTION: PHILIP WILLIAMS

7.10 Concern was raised that during the recent flooding incidents in Tewkesbury, 
traffic wardens were booking vehicles and it was requested that officers 
address this to make sure it didn’t happen during future incidents. 

 
7.11 Finally, Kathryn Haworth, Lead Commissioner for Highways, covered the 

main points of section 2.

7.12 The recent Storm Ciara and Storm Denis experienced in the county had 
stress tested the highways teams emergency response capabilities and a 
review had been undertaken. On the whole, the response went well but there 
were always improvements that could be made. The staffing resource levels 
were sufficient but just, it was acknowledged that if there had been another 
extreme weather incident for example, it would have been a struggle to 

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 10 -

respond efficiently. The review had resulted in a reflection on o the 
department’s continuity plans.

7.13 A lot of the effected highways sites were still underwater but the gangs had 
started to review the damage caused to the network. Members would be 
kept informed if planned works in their division were to be effected by the 
need to reprioritise damaged areas.

7.14 A member raised an issue with the new highways ‘Report It’ system in that 
they were not sure all reported issues are showing on the website. It was 
advised that the system had been inundated with reports. Over the month of 
February, the team received something in excess of 6000 public reports of 
issues on the network, which was a significant increase. When issues were 
reported, the information goes straight into the work stream rather than being 
double handed and should put a dot on the ‘Report It’ map to show it had 
been reported. It was advised this concern would be taken away and the 
team could check the site for any issues.

ACTION: KATHRYN HAWORTH

7.15 A member also commented that sometimes a report was responded to with 
‘no fault found’ and this was very difficult message to communicate back to 
residents with no additional information. It was noted for future consideration. 

7.16 Discussing the recent floods in Tewkesbury, a member questioned why 
many roads were remaining closed when, with suitable traffic light 
management, they could open in some form. It was advised that the team 
were currently working their way through work streams like this following the 
incident. The point was noted and taken away to work on improving the 
approach for the future.

7.17 The Committee paid thanks to the Highways team for all their hard work in 
responding to the recent flooding in the county in a timely manner.

8. WORK PLAN 

The Committee discussed the following points in relation to its ongoing work plan:

 It was noted that the next meeting in May 2020 was a one item joint meeting 
with the Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee on the Local Transport Plan 
Review.

 For the July 2020 meeting it was agreed that the there would be a report 
back from the Single-use Plastics Task group, and members requested an 
update report on the highways contracts and DMMO outreach position.

 Members then worked through the remaining items on their possible future 
items list and discussed whether they were still relevant for future meetings.

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 11 -

 It was decided that the lengthsman scheme update could now be included 
within the Directors report if required.

 It was agreed that there were regular updates when appropriate on Air 
Quality, Climate Change and the Dynamic Purchasing System for Transport. 
If the Committee noticed the need for a more in-depth item on these topics, it 
could be requested at the time.

 The Cotswold National Park discussion was with Government at the moment 
and there had been no timeline associated with its response. Officers would 
highlight when this was received.

 The Committee requested that Democratic Services look into the 
arrangement of a visit to Javelin Park for the Committee and the item on 
motion 787 to understand if it needed revisiting by the Committee.

ACTION: DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 12:30.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Gloucestershire County Council 

Ultra Low Emission Vehicle 

(ULEV) Strategy 

Wednesday, 04 March 2020

P
age 1

M
inute Item

 4

P
age 13



2

The ULEV Strategy:

Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) has commissioned Atkins to produce an Ultra Low 

Emission Vehicle (ULEV) Strategy to provide a policy position for the County to progress 

actions to enable increases in ULEV uptake. Atkins has produced this strategy following 

research of ULEV strategy examples from around the UK and understanding the situation 

and aspirations of GCC to expand the ULEV network and raise awareness of ULEVs to 

encourage switches to cleaner fuels.

Implementing ULEV actions:

Following the approval of the strategy, by GCC – investment in the strategy can be 

prioritised to seek appropriate procurement approaches. 

1. Introduction

P
age 2

P
age 14



2. Policy Context

ULEVs and vehicle charging infrastructure are evolving technologies that have seen rapid growth in both development and 

uptake over the last decade; this expansion has led to a shift in policy across several key sectors at a national, regional and 

local level. Key ULEV policy documents include:

• Transport: the Road to Zero Strategy (DfT, 2018); the Gloucestershire Local Transport Plan (GCC); UK Parliament’s Automated and Electric Vehicle Act 2018; 

and the Electric Vehicle Trading Scheme and Road Usage Duty (consultation) Bill passed to Royal Assent (2020).

• Industry: the UK Industrial Strategy (BEIS, 2017); and the draft Local Industrial Strategy (GFirst LEP, 2019). 

• Planning: The National Planning Policy Framework (2019).

• Energy: the Transport Energy Model Report (DfT, 2018); and the Gloucestershire Sustainable Energy Strategy (GFirst LEP, 2019).

• Air Quality: the UK Plan for tackling roadside Nitrogen Dioxide (NO₂) Concentrations (DEFRA & DfT, 2017); the UK Clean Air Strategy (DEFRA, 2019); and the

Gloucestershire Air Quality and Health Strategy (GAQHP, 2019).

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

3

P
age 3

P
age 15



3. Vision

Based on policy review, GCC’s vision for encouraging ULEV uptake is:

As part of our commitment to reducing the impact of transport on climate change, our

vision is to improve accessibility across Gloucestershire through low carbon modes.

For journeys that are unavoidable by motorised transport, we are committed to

encouraging a switch to Ultra Low Emission Vehicles (ULEVs) and strive to facilitate

this through enabling access to a charging infrastructure network.

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

4

P
age 4

P
age 16



4. The Existing Situation: Gloucestershire

Location ULEVs 

Registered

Number of 

Chargers

Number of 

Rapid Chargers

Population Chargers per 

100,000

Gloucestershire 5,230 136 42 633,558 21

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

5

Existing Charging Infrastructure in Gloucestershire and Key Statistics

37,698 (13.6% of commuters) 

enter Gloucestershire

39,670 ( 14.3% of commuters) 

leave Gloucestershire

199,725 (72.1% of commuters) commute 

within Gloucestershire 

Approximate location of the 136 chargers in Gloucestershire as of February 2020Gloucestershire Commuting Patterns (2011 Census)

P
age 5

P
age 17



4. The Existing Situation: Gloucester

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

6

Existing Charging Infrastructure in Gloucester and Key Statistics

Gloucester ULEV Network ConsiderationsGloucester Commuting Patterns (2011 Census)

Location ULEVs 

Registered

Number of 

Chargers

Number of 

Rapid Chargers

Population Chargers per 

100,000

Gloucester 333 24 6 129,285 19

4,652 (7.9% of commuters) leave 

Gloucestershire from Gloucester

29,407 (50.1%) commute within Gloucester 

7,053 (12.0%) commute to Tewkesbury

5,057 (8.6%) commute to Cheltenham

4,699 (8.0%) commute to Stroud

1,054 (1.8%) commute to Forest of Dean

948 (1.6%) commute to Cotswold

5,864 (10.0% of commuters) enter 

Gloucester from outside of 

Gloucestershire

P
age 6

P
age 18



4. The Existing Situation: Cheltenham 

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

7

Existing Charging Infrastructure in Cheltenham and Key Statistics

Cheltenham ULEV Network ConsiderationsCheltenham Commuting Patterns (2011 Census)

5,555 (10.0% of commuters) leave 

Gloucestershire from Cheltenham

29,462 (53.3%) commute within Cheltenham

6,313 (11.4%) commute to Tewkesbury

4,454 (8.1%) commute to Gloucester

1,768 (3.2%) commute to Cotswold

1,191 (2.2%) commute to Stroud

311 (0.6%) commute to Forest of Dean

6,268 (11.3% of commuters) enter 

Cheltenham from outside of 

Gloucestershire 

Location ULEVs 

Registered

Number of 

Chargers

Number of 

Rapid Chargers

Population Chargers per 

100,000

Cheltenham 323 26 3 117,090 22

P
age 7

P
age 19



4. The Existing Situation: Tewkesbury 

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

8

Existing Charging Infrastructure in Tewkesbury and Key Statistics

Tewkesbury ULEV Network ConsiderationsTewkesbury Commuting Patterns (2011 Census)

4,436 (10.8% of commuters) leave 

Gloucestershire from Tewkesbury

12,915 (31.4%) commute within Tewkesbury

8,293 (20.2%) commute to Cheltenham

5,457 (13.3%) commute to Gloucester

946 (2.3%) commute to Stroud

873 (2.1%) commute to Cotswold

464 (1.1%) commute to Forest of Dean

7,694 (18.7% of commuters) enter 

Tewkesbury from outside of 

Gloucestershire County

Location ULEVs 

Registered

Number of 

Chargers

Number of 

Rapid Chargers

Population Chargers per 

100,000

Tewkesbury 327 9 3 92,599 10

P
age 8

P
age 20



4. The Existing Situation: Stroud 

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

9

Existing Charging Infrastructure in Stroud and Key Statistics

Stroud ULEV Network ConsiderationsStroud Commuting Patterns (2011 Census)

Location ULEVs 

Registered

Number of 

Chargers

Number of 

Rapid Chargers

Population Chargers per 

100,000

Stroud 556 35 25 119,019 29

8,479 (17.2% of commuters) leave 

Gloucestershire from Stroud

23,998 (54.1%) commute within Stroud

5,492 (11.1%) commute to Gloucester

2,334 (4.7%) commute to Cotswold

1,947 (3.9%) commute to Cheltenham

1,791 (3.6%) commute to Tewkesbury

283 (0.6%) commute to Forest of Dean

4,981 (10.1% of commuters) enter 

Stroud from outside of 

Gloucestershire 

P
age 9

P
age 21



4. The Existing Situation: Cotswold

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

10

Existing Charging Infrastructure in Cotswold and Key Statistics

Cotswold ULEV Network ConsiderationsCotswold Commuting Patterns (2011 Census)

Location ULEVs 

Registered

Number of 

Chargers

Number of 

Rapid Chargers

Population Chargers per 

100,000

Cotswold 668 33 4 89,022 37

9,587 (24.4% of commuters) leave 

Gloucestershire from Cotswold

16,211 (41.2%) commute within Cotswold

1,487 (3.8%) commute to Cheltenham

957 (2.4%) commute to Stroud

796 (2.0%) commute to Gloucester 

687 (1.7%) commute to Tewkesbury

147 (0.4%) commute to Forest of Dean

9,443 (24.0% of commuters) enter 

Cotswold from outside of 

Gloucestershire

P
age 10

P
age 22



4. The Existing Situation: Forest of Dean

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

11

Existing Charging Infrastructure in Forest of Dean and Key Statistics

Forest of Dean ULEV Network ConsiderationsForest of Dean Commuting Patterns (2011 Census)

Location ULEVs 

Registered

Number of 

Chargers

Number of 

Rapid Chargers

Population Chargers per 

100,000

Forest of Dean 3,002 9 1 86,543 10

6,961 (20.9% of commuters) leave 

Gloucestershire from Forest of Dean

15,379 (46.1%) commute within Forest of Dean

4,036 (12.1%) commute to Gloucester 

1,646 (4.9%) commute to Tewkesbury

1,073 (3.2%) commute to Cheltenham

467 (1.4%) commute to Stroud

329 (1.0%) commute to Cotswold

3,448 (10.3% of commuters) enter 

Forest of Dean from outside of 

Gloucestershire

P
age 11

P
age 23



4a. Acorn Market Segmentation Data Review

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

12

GCC has access to the Acorn market segmentation data – that assesses population and household behavior.

The matrix table (below) sets out some of the criteria that might effect EV adoption, and therefore prioritise where charging 

infrastructure could be invested. A summary of the wards from each district is presented; with a ‘✓’ as positive and ‘’ as 

negative rank.
Acorn Data: District Matrix

Location 

/ Ward 
Income 

Car 
Ownership 

Attitude to 
Tech 

Attitude to 
Security Population 

ULEV 
priority 
score 

Gloucester 

Barton and 
Tredworth 

  ✓✓ ✓✓✓ 11650 - 

Kingsholm 
and Wotton 

  ✓ ✓✓ 6857  

Quedgeley 
Severn Vale 

✓ ✓ ✓✓✓ - 6243 ✓✓ 

Cheltenham 

College ✓ - ✓✓✓ ✓ 6034 
✓✓ 

Park ✓✓ - ✓✓✓ - 6503 ✓✓ 

St Paul's   ✓✓✓ ✓✓ 6427  

Tewkesbury 

Churchdown 
Brookfield 
with 
Hucclecote 
Ward 

✓ ✓✓   6264 ✓✓ 

Tewkesbury 
East Ward 

✓ ✓ ✓ - 6037 ✓✓ 

Winchcombe 
Ward 

✓ ✓✓   6686 ✓✓ 

Location 

/ Ward 
Income 

Car 
Ownership 

Attitude to 
Tech 

Attitude to 
Security Population 

ULEV 
priority 
score 

Stroud 

Chalford ✓✓ ✓✓   6491 ✓✓✓ 

Painswick 
and Upton 

✓✓✓ ✓✓   7117 ✓✓✓ 

Nailsworth ✓ ✓   6526 ✓✓ 

Cotswold 

Campden & 
Vale 

✓✓ ✓✓   5319 ✓✓ 

Lechlade, 
Kempsford & 
Fairford 
South 

✓✓ ✓✓   5427 ✓✓ 

The 
Ampneys & 
Hampton 

✓✓✓ ✓✓✓   2699 ✓✓ 

Forest of Dean 

Cinderford 
East Ward 

 -  ✓ 4738  

Hartpury & 
Redmarley 
Ward 

✓✓ ✓✓   5434 ✓✓ 

Longhope & 
Huntley 
Ward 

- ✓✓   3845 - 

 

Location 

/ Ward 
Income 

Car 
Ownership 

Attitude to 
Tech 

Attitude to 
Security Population 

ULEV 
priority 
score 

Gloucester 

Barton and 
Tredworth 

  ✓✓ ✓✓✓ 11650 - 

Kingsholm 
and Wotton 

  ✓ ✓✓ 6857  

Quedgeley 
Severn Vale 

✓ ✓ ✓✓✓ - 6243 ✓✓ 

Cheltenham 

College ✓ - ✓✓✓ ✓ 6034 
✓✓ 

Park ✓✓ - ✓✓✓ - 6503 ✓✓ 

St Paul's   ✓✓✓ ✓✓ 6427  

Tewkesbury 

Churchdown 
Brookfield 
with 
Hucclecote 
Ward 

✓ ✓✓   6264 ✓✓ 

Tewkesbury 
East Ward 

✓ ✓ ✓ - 6037 ✓✓ 

Winchcombe 
Ward 

✓ ✓✓   6686 ✓✓ 

Location 

/ Ward 
Income 

Car 
Ownership 

Attitude to 
Tech 

Attitude to 
Security Population 

ULEV 
priority 
score 

Stroud 

Chalford ✓✓ ✓✓   6491 ✓✓✓ 

Painswick 
and Upton 

✓✓✓ ✓✓   7117 ✓✓✓ 

Nailsworth ✓ ✓   6526 ✓✓ 

Cotswold 

Campden & 
Vale 

✓✓ ✓✓   5319 ✓✓ 

Lechlade, 
Kempsford & 
Fairford 
South 

✓✓ ✓✓   5427 ✓✓ 

The 
Ampneys & 
Hampton 

✓✓✓ ✓✓✓   2699 ✓✓ 

Forest of Dean 

Cinderford 
East Ward 

 -  ✓ 4738  

Hartpury & 
Redmarley 
Ward 

✓✓ ✓✓   5434 ✓✓ 

Longhope & 
Huntley 
Ward 

- ✓✓   3845 - 

 

P
age 12

P
age 24



5. Proposals for a ULEV Network

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

13

The matrix sets out the types of locations 

where charging infrastructure could be 

located and the type of vehicle that would 

use it, based on whether it is at the 

beginning point of a journey (the origin) or 

at the end point of a journey (destination). A 

‘✓’ denotes the origin location and a ‘✓’ 

denotes the destination location.

Location Type

User Type

Private Car Clubs 

/ Shared-

use

Taxis Buses Fleet Freight Active 

Modes

Residential ✓ ✓ ✓✓

Workplace ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓

Leisure ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓

Retail ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓

Hospitals ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓

On-street ✓ ✓ ✓✓ ✓✓

Loading Bays ✓

Parcel Drop-off Points ✓

Transport Hubs (general) ✓✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓

Transport Hubs (community 

transport)

✓✓

Park & Ride (P&R) Sites ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓

Service Stations ✓ ✓ ✓

Taxi Ranks ✓

Depots (Bus and Freight) ✓✓ ✓✓

Bus Stops ✓

Rail Stations ✓ ✓✓ ✓✓

Distribution Hubs ✓✓

ULEV Origin: Destination Types Matrix

P
age 13

P
age 25



5. Proposals for a ULEV Network

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

14

Charger Type Kilowatt 

(kW)

Approx. 

charge 

time

Approx. 

charge cost

Charge 

connector 

types

Travel type 

Suitability

Typical 

charge-

point 

locations

Ultra-Fast 

(Tesla Super 

Charger)

120 kW Up to 1 

hour and 

23 minutes

Up to £122 Tesla proprietary 

plug

Long 

distance 

non-

commercial 

travel

Motorway 

service 

stations

Rapid DC Up to 50 kW 30 to 40 

minutes

£12.53 • CHAdeM

o 50kW 

DC;

• CCS 

50kW 

DC;

• Tesla 

Type 2 

120kW 

DC

Long 

distance 

travel and 

commercial 

vehicles e.g. 

taxis

Rapid AC Up to 43 kW • Type 2 

43kW AC

Standard / 

Fast

7 kW to 22 

kW

3 to 5 

hours

£10.74 • Type 2 7-

22kW 

AC;

• Type 1 

7kW AC;

• Comman

do 7-

22kW AC

Short to 

medium 

distance 

trips

Publicly 

accessible 

areas e.g. 

supermarke

t car parks

Trickle / Slow 3 kW 7 to 8 

hours

£5.01 • 3-pin 

3kW AC;

• Type 1 

3kW AC;

• Type 2 

3kW AC;

• Comman

do 3kW 

AC

Short 

distance, 

local trips 

e.g. to the 

shops

On-street 

lamp post 

charging

This table provides an indication of the current 

state of the chargepoint industry.

P
age 14

P
age 26



5. Proposals for a ULEV Network

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

15

The Figure displays the average travel time in minutes by district to different public facilities in Gloucestershire using Lower

Super Output Area (LSOA) data.

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 T

ra
v
e
l T

im
e
 (
m

in
u
te

s
)

Facility

Average Travel Times to Key Public Facilities (Gloucestershire)

Cheltenham Cotswold Forest of Dean Gloucester Stroud Tewkesbury

P
age 15

P
age 27



6. Assessment Criteria

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

16

The graphic provides focused guidance on selecting sites for ULEV charging infrastructure.

P
age 16

P
age 28



7. Potential Funding Sources Many national funding sources will require local match 

funding. As such, local transport fund allocations could be set 

aside to support the delivery of ULEV charging infrastructure.

Many of the national funding sources are capital funding, 

meaning the revenue based promotional and engagement 

measures required to encourage ULEV uptake are often not 

funded.

Local funds could be used for this, not only from transport 

budgets, but across multiple departments that have a 

collective aim to reduce carbon emissions.

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

17

OLEV Homecharge Scheme

Workplace Charging Scheme

On-Street Residential Chargepoint Scheme (ORCS) 

Chargepoint Infrastructure Investment Fund (CIIF)

All-Electric Bus Town

Local Growth Fund (LGF)

Note: funding sources will continue to change as the ULEV industry 

develops. 

National funding sources available as of February 

2020:

P
age 17

P
age 29



8. Actions

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

18

ULEV strategies from around the UK have been reviewed to investigate approaches and innovations that have been 

taken to enable ULEV uptake. The actions proposed are a mix of tried and tested measures from elsewhere as well as 

new innovations to test in Gloucestershire.

We have set out the actions and how GCC can:

• Lead an initiative or action, with the capability of controlling all elements;

• Enable an initiative or action to be carried out, either by GCC or others;

• Explore new innovations, with GCC testing new approaches or ideas;

• Partner with other organisations for the delivery of initiatives or actions, where GCC does not have control over 

some elements, such as land ownership.

P
age 18

P
age 30



Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

19

Infrastructure ACTION 1: We will enable the expansion of Gloucestershire’s ULEV charging network

Funding
ACTION 2: We will lead on seeking opportunities to increase uptake of ULEVs with neutral revenue implications to GCC through bidding to Central 

Government funding sources and generating income through charging points

Policy and 

Governance

ACTION 3: We will enable new development to install active or futureproofed passive charging infrastructure by working with Local Planning 

Authorities to condition provision through the planning process

ACTION 4: We will lead on contributing towards the increase in the use of ULEVs in Gloucestershire by seeking opportunities to switch GCC fleet of 

operational vehicles and pool cars to ULEV and providing incentives to GCC employees to switch their own vehicles to ULEVs

ACTION 5: We will explore opportunities to meet our vision by ensuring that ULEV uptake is incorporated into policies across GCC and that 

responsibility for delivery is multi-disciplinary

Public 

Transport
ACTION 6: We will partner with public transport operators to identify funding opportunities to convert bus fleets to ULEV

There are a total of 13 proposed actions under eight different themes:

Taxis and Rail

ACTION 7: We will partner with taxi operators to encourage switches to ULEV  by offering business grants and other funding opportunities and 

improving coverage of charging infrastructure at taxi ranks. We will partner with Rail and Bus Station operators to implement charging points for car, 

taxis and buses

E-bikes and 

Micromobility

ACTION 8: We will explore opportunities to offer grants or loans to businesses and citizens for e-bike purchases and explore opportunities for shared 

use of e-cargo bikes or other micromobility options.

Engagement

ACTION 9: We will enable businesses to encourage ULEV uptake among their employees by offering grants to install charge points at workplaces 

and identifying ULEV champions

ACTION 10: We will explore opportunities for car club providers to make a switch to ULEVs and providing charging infrastructure in car club bays

ACTION 11: We will lead on raising awareness of ULEVs in Gloucestershire by incorporating information on ULEVs and the charging network into our 

travel information documents, engagement materials and on our website

Future 

Innovation

ACTION 12: We will explore innovative approaches that will help us achieve our vision for ULEV uptake and be aware of changes available to the 

market that we can promote

ACTION 13: We will explore and seek to partner with organisations that are advancing technology in renewable energy sources and grid balancing to 

ensure the impact of increasing the ULEV charging network is sustainable

P
age 19

P
age 31



9. Implementation Plan

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

20

Action GCC role Success criteria Timescales for 

implementatio

n

Expand charging network Enable Increased number of 

ULEV charge points 

across Gloucestershire

Medium-Long

Seek funding opportunities Lead Priorities for ULEVs 

funded

Short

Condition charging 

infrastructure in new 

developments

Enable All new developments 

built with charging 

infrastructure

Short

GCC fleet switch to ULEVs 

and encourage staff to 

switch

Lead ULEV fleet and staff 

take up of salary 

sacrifice opportunities

Medium

Multi-disciplinary delivery 

approach

Explore Delivery team set up 

and delivering actions to 

meet vision

Short

Partner with public transport 

operators to switch to ULEV

Partner More ULEV buses in 

Gloucestershire

Medium-Long

Partner with taxi drivers to 

switch to ULEV, including 

infrastructure at rail and bus 

stations

Partner More ULEV taxis in 

Gloucestershire; along 

with more infrastructure 

in rail and bus stations

Medium-Long

Enable take up of e-bikes Explore Provision of loan e-bikes 

and e-cargo bikes and 

grants for businesses 

and citizens

Medium

Business grants and ULEV 

champions

Enable Businesses able to 

install charging 

infrastructure

Medium

Explore ULEV shared car 

clubs

Explore Provision of shared 

ULEVs in 

Gloucestershire, leading 

to reduction in ICE use

Medium-Long

Raising awareness of 

ULEVs through website

Lead Increased awareness of 

ULEVs, leading to 

increased switches to 

ULEV from ICE

Short

Explore innovative 

approaches

Explore At the forefront of 

installing new 

technology

On going

Explore grid balancing and 

renewables

Explore and 

Partner

At the forefront of 

technology advances

Long

This table summarises each action, the role of GCC in delivering 

the action, how success will be achieved and the likely 

timescales for implementation.

Timescales are presented at short, medium and long term, with 

short being within 2 years, medium being within 2-5 years and 

long being over 5 years to implement.

With regards to how each action is to be funded, the most 

appropriate potential funding sources outlined in the previous 

slide will be investigated, although many actions will seek a 

combination of many of the sources.

P
age 20

P
age 32



10. Monitoring

The GCC ULEV Strategy will be reviewed in three years. This gives the opportunity to report progress on the 

actions set out in this document and assess the situation for ULEVs in what is an ever evolving area of mobility with 

innovative technologies constantly being introduced.  A more detailed monitoring and evaluation plan will be 

developed. 

Although progress will be reported on each of the actions, we will monitor the following data on an annual basis to 

identify trends:

• Number and percentage of ULEV registrations in Gloucestershire;

• Number of operational ULEV charge points, including origin and destination type, and type of charger; 

• User feedback; and

• Air quality data.

Gloucestershire County Council Ultra Low Emission Strategy

Contains sensitive information

21

P
age 21

P
age 33



22

P
age 22

P
age 34



Director’s Report, Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
Scrutiny Committee Report

June/July 2020

This report summarises key areas likely to lead to decisions over the next 6 months, 
including updates on areas previously reported.  

1.0 Decisions

1.1      Relevant forthcoming decisions, by date due:
 Refresh of the Local Developer User Guide (Between 5 Jun 2020 and 19 Jun 2020) 
 Recommendation to Council - 2nd Review of the Statement of Community 

Involvement (SCI) for Gloucestershire (17 June 2020) 
 Gloucester & Sharpness Canal Towpath Upgrade Phase 3 (17 June 2020)
 West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Scheme; UK Cyber Business Park –

Contract Procurement and Ancillary Orders Phases 3 & 4 and Walking and Cycling 
Improvements (17 June 2020) 

 M5 Junction 10 Improvement Scheme; Revenue budget approval and Homes 
England contract conditions agreement. (17 June 2020)

 Future options to deliver the Household Recycling Centre service (22 July 2020) 
 M5 Junction 10 Improvement Scheme; Commitment to use Compulsory Purchase 

Powers (22 July 2020)
 Food Waste Treatment Procurement and Contract Award (22 July 2020)

1.2 Pending Items not yet published on the Forward Plan:
 Public Notice and Advertising Contract (not yet on Forward Plan)
 ITU Bus Contract Procurement (not yet on the Forward Plan)
 ULEV Strategy and Procurement of EV infrastructure services

2.0 Highways and Major Projects update

2.1 Highways Contracts
 Term maintenance/Professional Services - Resources operating with some limited 

impact from COVID19.  Additional jet patching, pre-surface dressing patching and 
footway works all underway.

 Local Highways Maintenance Challenge Funding and Pothole Funding have been 
allocated by formula with a total of an additional £12.7m for Gloucestershire. 

 Structural maintenance - delivery slightly behind track for 20/21 as a result of 
postponement of some works due to COVID19 impacts but it is anticipated that 
delivery for the year should still be achievable.  The website shows the current 
schedule plus the interactive map for 20/21 works. 

 Street lighting – more business as usual/capital works now underway though focus 
remains on emergency response and reactive repairs.  

2.2 GSWB / Llanthony Road
 Planning permission granted April 2019.
 Ongoing negotiations with landowners / landlords re- 14 plots.

Page 35

Agenda Item 4

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32801&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=31595&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=31595&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32278&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=33021&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=33021&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=33021&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=33005&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=33005&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=33001&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=33264&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=33264&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=33263&Opt=0


 CPO Public Inquiry date was set for 19th May 2020; after CV-19 this was intended 
to be held virtually but PINS have postponed. The impact on scheme delivery 
timetable will be assessed as soon as a revised date is known. 

2.3 A419 Junction Improvements (Stonehouse)
 Construction substantially complete.

2.4 A38 Canal Bridges, Whitminster
 Works progressing well.

2.5 DfT Emergency Active Travel Fund
 In May councils were invited to bid for £225m of funding for walking and cycling 

schemes to create space to enable social distancing by reallocating road space 
where necessary. For Tranche 1 schemes are likely to be temporary or “pop-up” 
and must be deliverable within 8 weeks. Bids for Tranche 2, later in the summer, 
will be for more permanent schemes. 

 A briefing note was circulated to members and Districts inviting potential scheme 
ideas and asking districts to nominate their three top priorities. The team has been 
inundated with requests for measures so these are being collated and will be 
assessed against DfT and local criteria.

 The first three Tranche 1 schemes were rolled out in Bath Road (Cheltenham), 
Tewkesbury High Street and Bourton on the Water in late May, early June. A fourth, 
London Road (Gloucester), is under development.  Learning from these pilots will 
be applied to later schemes.

 In early June Gloucestershire submitted a bid for Tranche 1 funding (indicative 
allocation £288k). A senior traffic engineer has been recruited to accelerate scheme 
design and implementation and develop our bid for Gloucestershire’s £1.15m 
indicative allocation of Tranche 2 funding. 

3.0 Community Infrastructure Update

3.1 Public Transport - ITU
 Social distancing pressures on public transport are challenging all bus operators, 

especially in rural shire authorities. To protect the sector from collapse the council 
has been supporting operators by paying 90% of contract rates and concessionary 
scheme reimbursement whilst services have been reduced. At the same time 
operators have received support from the Government through the Job Retention 
Scheme and a Commercial Bus Services Support Grant. 

 The medium term impact of COVID19 on an industry which is key to tackling 
climate change and improving access to essential services remains uncertain as 
90% of public transport trips are made on formerly commercial services and many 
school bus operators traditionally rely on income from coach excursions.

 As the COVID19 Recovery grows concerns were raised regarding peak time bus 
service capacity.  As pupils return to school, shops reopen and furloughed staff 
return to work bus service frequencies have been increased back to or close to 
former levels. However with only 20-25% of normal capacity buses become full very 

Page 36



quickly so people living further along routes may face being unable to board, not 
just at peak times. This risk should be considerably mitigated by a reduction in the 
2m social distancing rules and the requirement to wear face coverings on public 
transport.

3.2 Network & Traffic Management and Parking
 By week 12 of the lockdown (mid/late June) traffic levels had returned to 

approximately 67% of pre-COVID levels.  Local cycling levels were up 96% on pre-
COVID levels and many local bike shops had sold out of stock.

 Following emergency changes to parking enforcement policy in April CEO patrols 
were temporarily reduced to one third of normal levels.  Parking enforcement has 
since been reinstated in stages to reflect increased traffic as businesses, schools 
and other sectors reopen and to ensure that safety is not compromised. In the first 
week (22nd to 29th June) warning notices were issued for non-safety related parking 
offences.

4.0 Strategic Infrastructure update

4.1 A417 Missing Link
 Highways England’s Road Investment Strategy 2 programme confirmed funding for 

the A417 Missing Link. 
 Highways England have confirmed that the A417 Missing Link scheme will not be 

submitted to the Planning Inspectorate (PINS) to commence the Development 
Consent Order planning application process in May/June 2020. This will now affect 
the scheme’s delivery programme. Further information is awaited. 

4.2 M5 J10 / HIF bid
 After a positive funding announcement, GCC officers are working on the conditions, 

Heads of Terms and Assurance Framework with Homes England with the aim of 
getting into contract in Summer 2020, enabling drawdown on the £219.84M by late 
Summer / early Autumn. 

 In June Cabinet approved the additional funding for the scheme.  This will fund the 
work required to enable GCC to enter into contract with Homes England and 
MHCLG and ensure the scheme can continue to move forward.

4.3 M5 Junction 9 and A46 (Ashchurch)
 Work continues on the Outline Business Case (OBC) for the M5 J9 & A46, to 

enable submission to the DfT in October 2021 discussions re- possible future 
funding ongoing with both Homes England and Tewkesbury BC. 

 In June Cabinet approved funding to enable work on the OBC to continue

4.4 West Cheltenham / Cyber £22M
 Work has now started on site regarding phases 1 and 2 of the scheme;
 Funding approved for phases 3 and 4 of the scheme at the GFirst LEP Board 

meeting on 9th June 2020. 

4.5 Local Transport Plan (LTP)
 Following the public consultation that took place 16th January – 26th March 2020, 

officers are analysing the responses that were received. The Plan is scheduled for 
adoption in early 2021. 

Page 37



 The adoption of the LTP has been delayed to early 2021 to enable the implications 
of the Department for Transport’s Decarbonisation Plan, once published late 2020, 
to be fully incorporated into the LTP. 

4.6 Improved rail connectivity
 The Gloucestershire Rail Investment Strategy was published March 2020.
 This will now feed into the emerging review of the Local Transport Plan.
 MetroWest Phase 2 - following lobbying of the West of England Combined Authority 

(WECA) the proposed Yate turnback option has been dropped in favour of the 
Gloucester extension.  It is expected for this service to be incorporated into the rail 
service from December 2022.

 A Bristol to Birmingham  (B2B) task force has been developed to promote increased 
connectivity for stations located on the Bristol to Birmingham rail line

4.7 Chepstow Transport Improvements
 Consultant’s report outlined scheme options.
 Monmouthshire CC keen to progress the Business Case.
 GCC Lead Cabinet Members supported a GCC financial contribution of £20K 

(2020/21) towards Stage 2 of the Chepstow Transport Study.  

4.8 Local Plans / JCS 
 Review of JCS now underway following an ‘Issues and Options’ consultation which 

ended in January 2019;
 There is agreement with JCS officers that there should be a review of the JCS CIL. 
 Stroud Local Plan – Consultation on Draft Local Plan – closed 22nd January 2020. 

Officer concerns submitted to SDC – especially transport issues re- the significant 
proposed development at Sharpness;

5.0 Libraries & Registration

5.1 Libraries
 The Summer Reading Challenge will be delivered by the Reading Agency using 

digital and online content from 6th June 2020.  We are keen to ensure that we can 
also provide physical resources to vulnerable children or children of key workers.  In 
order to deliver this we are working with teams from the Virtual School and 
Education.  We are also exploring links with local food banks.

 The Innovation Lab has set up an online coding club which is a Facebook event 
held every Wednesday at 11am and hosted on our Youtube channel.  

5.2 Registration Services
 There is a significant backlog of registration services resulting from COVID-19.  

Between 6th April and the end of May 914 ceremonies have been amended, 
cancelled or postponed.  Staff are working through these in priority order with a 
further 70 ceremonies in June to re-arrange.  Information about lifting of restrictions 
is awaited.

 Birth registrations – registration of births commenced in Gloucester w/c 8th June 
with other locations coming on line soon.  There is currently a backlog of 
approximately 1500 babies to register.

Page 38

https://www.facebook.com/events/1578921618940146/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2rj5eH0vQNs


6.0 Waste Management 

 As of 27th May, all five of the county’s Household Recycling Centres have 
reopened. All visits need to be pre-booked online and social distancing measures 
are in place on site. 

 All waste treatment facilities including the Gloucestershire EfW, food waste and 
composting sites continue to accept waste.

 As of 8th June, all District Council collection services including refuse, recycling, 
food waste, garden waste and bulky waste collections are fully operational.

7.0 Adult Education 

 The restructure of the Adult Education Service is almost completed.  This will ensure 
that the necessary savings can be introduced before the start of the new education 
year (September 2020). 

 Online learning is in place for community learning, skills and apprenticeship provision.
 The Local Industrial Strategy remains on hold during the Covid-19 situation.   
 Work delivered across this service area will form part of the GCC Economic Recovery 

Proposals in respect to skills development especially for young people
 The Careers and Enterprise Company (CEC) has launched Wave 3 of the Careers 

Hubs.  GFirst LEP and GCC are seeking to apply to join Wave 3 and further build on 
the success of the Gloucestershire Enterprise Advisor Network (EAN). CEC have 
already acknowledged the success of the joint working between GCC and GFirst LEP 
on our careers work with special schools and their students.

Contact Officer
Colin Chick, Executive Director of Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk, 01452 328470

Page 39

mailto:colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

P
age 41



2

P
age 42



5

4

79

3

P
age 43



4

P
age 44



5

P
age 45



6

P
age 46



APPENDIX 1

Page 1 of 1

SUBJECT DMMO Engagement Officer role update

DATE July 2020

AUTHOR Karen Brookes Pearman, Highway Records, Network & Traffic Management.

The 2yr fixed term role of an ‘Outreach Officer’ (now formally known as DMMO Engagement Officer) was to 
engage with the community and rights of way user groups to advise them of the “2026 cut-off” relating to 
Modification Order claims based on documentary evidence for routes to be recorded on the Definitive Map, 
to help them coordinate/spread out any applications, and to analyse the knock-on impact of that expected 
increase in applications on the current resource allocation within the DMMO team, and so whether additional 
resource would consequently be required.

Andrew Houldey (existing DMMO Officer) was seconded into the role in December 2019 and has started 
engaging with the main national groups and a number of the locally-based groups.  To date, whilst they are 
currently collating basic evidence on routes of potential interest, they are currently unable to advise on likely 
numbers which will result in submitted DMMO applications; however, they are being encouraged to submit 
applications as they become viable, rather than storing them up for bulk submission.

The Engagement Officer has also been engaging with Parish Councils, currently on an ad-hoc basis; a few 
meetings have been held, although the restrictions during the current Covid pandemic have obviously 
prevented face-to-face engagement.  A wider strategy to engage all Parishes is currently being developed.

Officers can also report there has been an increase in general enquiries about how to protect routes, some of 
which have resulted in requests for DMMO Claim Packs.

End.

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2020-21

20 May 2020 – [CANCELLED]
Joint meeting with Economic Growth

15 July 2020

Local Transport Plan Review [DELAYED] Highways Contracts Update [DELAYED]

Quarter 3 2019/20 Performance Report 
[received in March]

Definitive Map Modification Order – an update 
on the outreach post [to be included in the 

Director’s report]

Single-use plastics task group report 
[DELAYED]

Quarter 4 2019/20 Performance Report

23 September 2020
Joint meeting with Economic Growth

24 November 2020

Local Transport Plan Review

Quarter 1 2020/21 Performance Report Quarter 2 2020/21 Performance Report

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 5



POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS

1 Footways (in relation to Motion 787: 
Pavements) – to be revisited early 2019

5 SUP Task Group

2 Infrastructure South – including the third river 
crossing

6 Highways Contract update

3 Infrastructure Planning

4 Visit to Javelin Park

P
age 50


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	4 Draft Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Strategy

	4 Executive Director's Report: Economy, Environment and Infrastructure
	Environment Q4 Scrutiny
	2020Jul_EnvCom_DMMO-EO-Update_v3

	5 Work Plan



